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Is that Mt. Washington you can 
see from the stone bench at the 

Height-of-land?

Yes, with a nice view of Tuckerman’s 
Ravine. It is a little less than 60 
miles away, a bit north of due west, 
the highest point in the northeast. 
Ray Landry, to whom the bench is 
dedicated, was a friend of Thorncrag 
who passed away shortly after 
helping clear this viewing corridor.

Where are the nearest bathrooms?

Going out of the parking lot, 
turn right and make a quick left. 
Hannaford Supermarket is at the end 
of the block.

What is the story behind the big 
fireplace?

The fireplace and the benches are a 
memorial to Kate J. Anthony donated 
by her brother Alfred in 1932. 
Alfred, his wife Gertrude Libby and 
his sister Kate were the original 
benefactors of Thorncrag, giving 
the Stanton Bird Club the first 
six parcels of land, totaling about 
220 acres, from 1921 to 1931. The 
fireplace was repaired in the 1950s 
and again in the 1990s.

What about the smaller fireplace?

It is a memorial to Carrie Miller, the 
first treasurer of the Bird Club 
(for the first 28 years!) and its most 
avid “birder” in the early days. The 
fireplace sits on a corner of four 
parcels of land. These parcels were 
acquired by gift in 1921, 1924, and 
1943, and purchase in 2007.

What is the opening on the Yellow 
Trail just beyond the gate?

This is the site of the Highland Spring 
and the former Highland Spring Bottling 
Company. Water and soda pop were bottled 
here for many years, in fact in 1904 at 
the St Louis World’s Fair water from this 
spring received the red ribbon for water 
quality for the entire United States.

 
Why is there a memorial at the 

Trafton Pinnacle?

The Trafton family, long-term benefactors 
of the Bird Club and Thorncrag, was 
extremely generous when the 80 acre 
Michaud Property (site of the former H.O. 
Wood dairy farm) was going to be sold for 
development. The memorial overlooks the 
land they helped us purchase.

Why is that guy buried up there?

He isn’t; no one is buried at Thorncrag 
(that we know of). Gordon Joseph Soucy 
was a close friend of an anonymous 
Thorncrag benefactor. In return for 
the benefactor’s help in acquiring a 
critical parcel of land, the area known as 
Gordon’s Ledge was developed. 

 

Do you cut trees for income?

We have in the past cut trees for 
both habitat improvement and for 
income (frequently both goals can be 
accomplished at the same time).

Where are all the birds?

They are around, in the woods and 
especially at all the bird feeders at 
the surrounding houses. Contrary 
to many sanctuaries, we do not try to 
“collect” the birds in selected areas 
for viewing. The migratory seasons and 
the hours around dawn and dusk are 
the more active times. Also it pays to sit 
a while – it always pays to sit a while!

How old are the trees?

The oldest known tree is an 
approximately 250 year old hemlock 
in the beautiful stand west of the 
Anthony fireplace. As the oldest 
parts of the Sanctuary date from 1921 
through 1925 and were at that time 
pasture land in the beginning stages 
of reforestation, many trees that were 
young then are now mature.

Can we have our wedding ceremony 
or similar events here?

No. In keeping with our commitment 
to steward this land for wildlife 
habitat and for education in the 
natural sciences, non-club sponsored 
ceremonies are not allowed. 

How many miles of trails are in 
Thorncrag?

There are about 3 ½ miles of color 
blazed, maintained trails in the 
Sanctuary.

 
Can people build fires in the 

fireplaces?

No – no fires can be built in Thorncrag 
unless it is in connection with a 
Club sponsored activity.

 
 

Why don’t you allow dogs?

We did from 1921 to 2010. You can 
imagine the change in our culture 
regarding dogs over that time span. 
Ultimately, due to the pressures of 
a) the number of dogs, b) the kinds 
of dogs, c) the changing attitudes 
of the dog owners, d) the number 
of negative incidents, e) the 
emerging data of the effect dogs 
have on wildlife, especially birds, 
and f) the commitment of the Board 
of Directors to natural habitat and 
nature education, as of October 
1, 2010 dogs and other pets were 
no longer allowed in any of our 
sanctuaries.

Blue Jay by Daniel J. Marquis

White Throated Sparrow by Daniel J. Marquis
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What is the story behind the stone 
bench along the Yellow Trail?

This was built in memory of Albert 
Kavanagh, the first president of the Bird 
Club, whose wisdom, hard work and sense 
of humor set the club and its sanctuaries 
on a firm course for success. The bench 
originally had a fireplace across from it; 
this was dismantled in the 1990s.

How did Thorncrag get its name?

When Alfred Anthony donated the first 
parcel of land in 1921 he suggested it be 
named Thorncrag. The hill was known as 
Thorne’s Hill and a nearby intersection 
as Thorne’s Corner after elder Benjamin 
Thorne, an active participant in Lewiston’s 
early history. Crag is due to its rocky 
structure.

Is whale rock a glacial erratic?

No, if you look closely you will observe 
that the “rock” is attached, not resting 
on the surface as would a glacial erratic. 

What are the foundations 
next to the meadows on the 

Green Trail?

The house and barn foundations, 
which were connected in the New 
England farmhouse style, date 
from the early 1800s. In 1921, when 
Thorncrag began, Ossie and Mabel 
Wood (brother and sister) operated 
a thriving dairy farm here. They 
allowed the Bird Club to use the 
Height-of-land at Thorncrag, and 
in 1943, when she had to sell the 
farm, Mabel donated the three 
acre Height-of-land parcel to 
Thorncrag. There is a memorial 
boulder dedicated to Ossie and 
Mabel Wood on the plateau on top 
of Thorncrag. The 80 acre farm was 
purchased by the Club in 1994 and 
the meadows and pasture, which 
had grown in from a half century 
of neglect, were restored by Club 
volunteers during the first decade 
of the 21st Century.

Are the ponds “natural”?

The ponds are all dug; the first, 
where the Blue Trail meets the 
White Trail, was created in 1925 
for wildlife. Although not much 
larger than it is now it was named 
Lake Thorncrag! The others were 
dug in the late 40s and early 50s at 
collecting points for small streams 
or over natural springs. These 
were created as sources of water 
in case of fire. Today several, 
including “Lake Thorncrag”, are 
productive vernal pools.

 

Who owns Thorncrag and how 
can I help?

The Stanton Bird Club owns 
and manages three sanctuaries; 
Thorncrag (372 acres), the 401 
acre Woodbury Nature Sanctuary in 
Monmouth and Litchfield, and the 
2 acre Applesass Hill on Pleasant 
Street in Lewiston. You can help by 
respecting our rules, by keeping 
our sanctuaries clean and safe, and 
by becoming a member/supporter of 
our Club.

The giving levels are as follows:

	 Basic supporter	 $25.00

	 Friend	 $60.00

	 Naturalist	 $125.00

	 Land Steward	 $250.00

	 Stantonian	 $500.00+

	 Other	 $_______

 

Send check to: Treasurer

Stanton Bird Club

P.O. Box 3172

Lewiston, ME 04243

Established in 1921

Owned and Managed by

Stanton Bird Club
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Pileated Woodpecker by Lisa Davis

www.stantonbirdclub.org


